
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
* Reporting to Cabinet 

3 January 2018 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL to be held on Thursday 11 January 2018 at 
7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, 
Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   SUBSTITUTIONS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To note apologies. 
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 14 December 
2017. 
 

4.   NOTIFICATION OR URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 9  
 

Public Document Pack



5.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda. 
 

6.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

7.   RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW LINES IN 
VARIOUS ROADS WELHAM GREEN (Pages 5 - 18) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) 
which sets out the results of the informal consultation, the formal consultation and 
the recommended course of action. The residents and businesses at 272 
addresses were consulted.  Three formal objections have been received. See 
Appendix A. 
 

8.   HERTFORDSHIRE'S LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN - PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
(Pages 19 - 26) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the County Council’s longer term transport aspirations, key transport policies and 
strategic transport projects. The current Local Transport Plan (LTP3) covers the 
period from 2011 to 2031. The County Council proposes to adopt a new Local 
Transport Plan (LTP4) and has previously carried out initial consultation under the 
heading ‘Transport Vision 2050’. This report updates the Panel on the content of 
the draft Plan and the timetable intended for its adoption. 
 

9.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

10.   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Panel is asked to resolve: 
 
That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 11 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 
In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



PART II 
 

11.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  

 
Circulation: Councillors S.Boulton (Chairman) 

M.Perkins (Vice-Chairman) 
D.Bennett 
H.Bromley 
N.Chapman 

A.Chesterman 
M.Cowan 
C.Gillett 
G.Hayes 
P.Shah 

   
 
 Co-opted Members:- 

Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
 
D.Fuller and M.Kandekore 
 
Executive Board 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact G Paddan  
democracy@welhat.gov.uk 01707 357349, Governance Services Unit on 01707 
357349 or email – g.paddan@welhat.gov.uk 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Item No: 7 
Main author: Martin Donohoe 
Executive Member: Helen Bromley 
Welham Green and Hatfield South Ward 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL – 11 JANUARY 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (RESOURCES, ENVIRONMENT AND 
CULTURAL SERVICES) 

RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW LINES IN VARIOUS 
ROADS WELHAM GREEN 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Residents and businesses in Welham Green were consulted about proposals to 
prevent drivers from parking too close to junctions. 

1.2 This report sets out the results of the informal consultation, the formal 
consultation and the recommended course of action. The residents and 
businesses at 272 addresses were consulted.  Three formal objections have 
been received. See Appendix A. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Panel consider the objections received, in particular the issues raised 
around equalities and diversity and having considered all the detailed issues in 
this report including any proposed mitigating actions, recommends to Cabinet to 
proceed with the creation of the Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) for all the 
reasons set out in this report. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Following a review of the existing parking restrictions in Holloways Lane and 
adjoining roads, a number new parking restrictions were implemented in January 
2017. These included two small permit schemes in Bulls Lane and Somers Road 
and double yellow lines at a number of other junctions.  At the same time a 
double yellow line was introduced outside number 62 Nash Close; not for the 
purposes of road safety but to prevent obstruction of the access to the front door 
of number 62. This line was marked 10 metres long on the southern kerb and 7.5 
metres long on the western kerb. 

3.2 During the six month monitoring period following the introduction of the new 
parking restrictions, a number of residents reported incidents of cars parking on 
the junctions of Station Road and Dellsome Lane had increased. 

3.3 Residents in Nash Close also requested double yellow lines opposite number 62 
to prevent obstruction of the junction in front of numbers  51 to 22 Nash Close.  
This request was made on the grounds of roads safety. 

3.4 Corporate Property also requested parking restrictions to prevent obstruction of 
the garage forecourt in Parsonage Lane. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



2 

 

3.5 One round of informal consultation was held, proposing double yellow lines at the 
junctions of Station Road and Dellsome Lane and for the front of the garage 
forecourt in Parsonage Lane. 208 addresses were consulted, there were 21 
responses in favour of the scheme and there were six responses against the 
scheme. 

3.6 Two rounds of informal consultation were carried out in Nash Close. The first 
round offered a matching double yellow line opposite number 62.  
64 addresses were consulted, two were in favour of the scheme no responses 
were received against the scheme. A number of requests were made in the 
comments section to extend the double yellow lines further into the cul-de-sac 
and some to shorten the double yellow line outside number 51 and 52. 
 
The second round gave an option for shorter yellow lines outside numbers 51 
and 52 and for a continuous double yellow line that covered the entire west side 
and the turning-head in the cul-de-sac. The second round consultation split the 
residents.  64 addresses were consulted. A number of requests were made in the 
comments section. Four residents requested full double yellow lines at the 
junction, two of these phoned in to withdraw all support for the other restrictions 
and only wanted double yellow lines at the junction. The final tally for the Nash 
Close consultation was. Three in favour or short yellow lines at the junction, four 
in favour of 10 metre yellow lines at the junction, one against any junction 
protection,  four in favour of the lines in the turning-head, five against lines in the 
turning-head. 
 
Looking at the above results it was obvious that the residents who responded 
wanted different things. Having considered the results of both informal 
consultations in Nash Close, Parking Services decided to act on the safety 
concerns which were raised during the review and promote a parking restriction 
extending 10 metres on all sides of the junction which will improve the sightlines 
leading into and out of the cul-de-sac. 

3.7 Residents and businesses in each consultation area were sent a notification 
letter in November 2017 stating the Councils intention to create the new parking 
restrictions.  These letters contained plans showing the updated designs. The 
final design showing the extent of the proposed restrictions may be viewed in 
Appendix B. 

3.8 On the 22 November 2017 the public notice proposing “The Borough of 
Welwyn Hatfield (Various Roads, Welham Green) (Restriction of Waiting) 
Order 2017” was advertised in the Welwyn Hatfield Times. Notices were also 
erected in the lengths of roads affected. The closing date for formal objections 
was 14 December 2017. See Appendix B. 

3.9 Objections 

3.9.1 There are two formal objections from the residents living on the junction of Nash 
Close see Appendix A. Below is a summary of the grounds for objection 

a) The proposed 10 metre restrictions will prevent the residents at one 
address from parking two cars at the side of their property and the 
residents at the other address from parking one car in front of their 
property. 

Page 6



3 

 

b) Only four out of twelve responses from the cul-de-sac voted in favour of 
the 10 metre double yellow lines 

3.9.2 There is one objection from residents living in Welham Close 

a) The objection was made on the grounds that this proposal does not go 
far enough. They are requesting more double yellow line extending 
beyond the immediate 10 metres surrounding the junction. 

3.10 The reasons for moving forward with this proposal are as follows: 

3.10.1 Responses to 3.9.1 

a) The original requests for a second double yellow line in this part of 
Nash Close were made on the grounds of road safety. 

b) Only three out of twelve responses voted in favour of the shorter yellow 
lines at the junction.  However, even if there had been a majority in 
favour of the shorter lines, Parking Services must give more weight to 
the request for 10 metres of double yellow line which was made on the 
grounds of road safety. 

c) Preventing cars from parking within 10 metres of this junction will 
improve the sight lines and help the residents enter and exit the cul-de-
sac. In addition, the Highway Code advises drivers that they should not 
park within 10 metres of a junction. 

3.10.2  Response to 3.9.2 

a) A number of residents have also requested substantial amounts of 
double yellow lines at other locations in Station Road and Dellsome 
Lane. However, it is not our intention to remove all parking space from 
these locations. Only to prevent parking at the junctions. 

b) Additional yellow lines would cause unnecessary displacement of 
parking into other roads in Welham Green.  

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 TROs are created under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984. Consultations 
follow a statutory legal process as set out in The Local Authorities' Traffic Orders 
(Procedure) (England and Wales) Regulations 1996. No other legal implications 
are inherent in relation in to the proposals in this report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The cost of TRO works recommended in this report will be funded through 
existing Parking Services revenue budgets. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Changing the parking conditions in the above mentioned roads could generate 
negative publicity. Some parking may be displaced into nearby roads.  

Page 7



4 

 

6.2 It is standard procedure to monitor new parking restrictions for the first 6 months 
after they are implemented. During this period all reports of safety issues or 
parking displacement will be recorded. If any significant safety issues are 
discovered during the monitoring period, Parking Services will investigate and 
carryout the appropriate remedial action. 

7         Security & Terrorism Implications 

7.1 There are no security & terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

8        Procurement Implications 

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

9        Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in   
this report. 

10      Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1   The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority Protect and 
Enhance the Environment, and specifically to the achievement to Deliver 
Effective Parking Services 

 Protect and enhance the environment and deliver effective parking 
services; 

 Engage with our communities and provide value for money 

11      Equality and Diversity 

11.1   I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out. 

11.2   The EqIA found that there is the potential for negative impacts on Age, 
Pregnancy and Disability. The double yellow lines will prevent parking at the 
junctions; this may force drivers to park further away from their destination. 
However Parking Services believes that the benefits provided by added road 
safety at the junctions out ways any dis-benefits.  There is a slight positive impact 
for disabled drivers with a valid Blue Badge, as they will be allowed to park on 
the yellow lines for up to three hours. 

11.3 During the monitoring period (6.2) should any unintended negative impacts come 
to light, Parking Services will investigate and carryout the appropriate remedial 
action. 

Name of author Martin Donohoe 01707 357550 
Title Senior Parking Technician 
Date 18 December 2017 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

 

Page 8



 
Subject: Objection to the notice advertised on 15th November 2017 titled "The Borough of Welwyn Hatfield 
(Various Roads, Welham Green) (Restriction of Waiting) Order 2017 
Importance: High 
 
 
WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening 
attachments or clicking links.  
.  
 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
I am making an objection to the notice advertised on 15th November 2017 titled "The Borough of Welwyn 
Hatfield (Various Roads, Welham Green) (Restriction of Waiting) Order 2017. 
 
From your letter of 20th October, it looks like the double yellow line will extend alongside our property to up to 
our kitchen at Nash Close. We don't want the line to extend that far because we need to be able to 
comfortably park 3 cars along the side of our property extending up to our garden fence.  
 
Therefore, we need the double yellow line to stop exactly at the drain grill in the road (please see my picture 
attached). By ending the double yellow lines here, we will be able to park 3 cars properly. We have 2 cars and 
any of our neighbours will be able to park in the 3rd spot. 
 
I look forward to your response. 
 
Kind regards 
 

 

 

APPENDIX A

Page 9



file:////tamworth/...T%20DELETE/Welham%20Green/Variousw%20Roads%202017%20TRO/objections/Silvey%2052%20Nash%20Close.txt[19/12/2017 11:06:23]

 

 To: parking
 Subject: RE: Case - 111000987691 - Nash Close parking consultation NOTICE OF OBJECTION

 WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or 
clicking links. 
 . 
 THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELHAM GREEN) (RESTRICTION OF 
WAITING) ORDER 2017

 I am making an objection to the notice advertised on 15th November as per the above mentioned details.

 I had originally made my situation clear in my email to you dated 5th February 2017 (copy attached) and 
subsequently understood from your interim letter dated 15th June 2017 that there were no plans to implement extended 
double yellow lines at the junction in to our part of the close. Therefore I was concerned that you had retracked on 
your original findings and that 4 residents had now wished for fuller double yellow lines to be advocated which would 
mean that my house would potentially be directly affected. 

 I acknowledge that at the turning head there would be some justification for shorter double yellow lines but cannot see 
any reason to extend any further and to cover the entire space outside my house. I have had the use of this convenient 
space over many years and know that this area and formerly the space on the opposite side of the road were popular 
with residents to park their vehicles before double yellow lines were previously initiated. 

 Also I note that 4 residents have requested this action and means in reality that the remaining 8 residents in this 
section of the close would have totally no objection and does not represent a valid quorum or representation of the 
parking issues.

 If it were considered a necessity then I have previously enquired about erecting a dropped curb and also for the 
council to remove the tree at the front of the garden that they had planted to enable landscaping of that area to be 
possible.

 If you need any further information then please let me know.

 Regards

 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 10



file:////tamworth/...0DELETE/Welham%20Green/Variousw%20Roads%202017%20TRO/objections/Goodey,%2011%20Welham%20Close.txt[19/12/2017 11:05:47]

Sent: 20 November 2017 16:39
 To: Contact-WHC
 Subject: RE: Parking

 WARNING: This email originated outside the WHBC Network. Please be extra vigilant when opening attachments or 
clicking links. 
 . 
 Hi , 
 I have read and looked at your proposal for the parking along Delsome lane ,I have sent you photos of the issue but it 
seems that has been over looked .
 If the double yellow lines don’t go from Welham close to Sommer’s road this will make no difference ,just to put 
yellow lines that will only just go round the corner is a waste of time .
 Kind Regards 
 Edward Goodey 

 
 

APPENDIX A

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

P
age 13



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

P
age 14



APPENDIX B

Page 15



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 B

P
age 16



 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

THE BOROUGH OF WELWYN HATFIELD (VARIOUS ROADS, WELHAM GREEN) 
(RESTRICTION OF WAITING) ORDER 2017 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (pursuant to 
arrangement made with Hertfordshire County Council) in order to improve road safety 
proposes to make the above Order under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 to introduce 
restrictions in parts of various roads in Welham Green as specified in the Schedule to this 
Notice. 
 
Full details of the proposals are contained in the draft Order, the plans and the statement of 
reasons which may be inspected during normal office hours at the offices of Welwyn Hatfield 
Borough Council, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City or viewed at www.welhat.gov.uk from 
22nd November 2017. 
 
General enquiries relating to the proposals should be referred to Martin Donohoe, Parking 
Services , Council Offices, Welwyn Garden City, AL8 6AE (01707 357000); email 
parking@welhat.gov.uk  
 
Objections to the proposals should be made in writing to Ka Ng, Council Offices, The 
Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE by 14th December 2017, stating the grounds 
on which they are made.  
 
SCHEDULE - No waiting at any time (double yellow lines) - those sections of road 
listed below as set out in the Order and accompanying plans  
 
Parts  of Dellsome Lane, Lydia Mews, Nash Close, Parsonage Lane, Sibthorpe Road, 
Station Road and Welham Close 
 

Ka Ng, Executive Director of Resources Environment and Cultural Services  
Council Offices, The Campus, Welwyn Garden City, Herts AL8 6AE 
22nd November 2017 

 

APPENDIX B

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main author: Simon Chivers 
Executive Member: Cllr Mandy Perkins 
All Wards 

 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET PLANNING AND PARKING PANEL 

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING AND 

GOVERNANCE) 

HERTFORDSHIRE’S LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN – PUBLIC CONSULTATION 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 Hertfordshire County Council as local transport authority is required by law to 
prepare and periodically review a Local Transport Plan (LTP) for the county, setting 
out its longer term transport aspirations, key transport policies and strategic 
transport projects. An LTP is also a basis for transport investment decisions. The 
current Local Transport Plan (LTP3) covers the period from 2011 to 2031. The 
County Council proposes to adopt a new Local Transport Plan (LTP4) and has 
previously carried out initial consultation under the heading ‘Transport Vision 2050’. 
The initial consultation was the subject of a report to Cabinet Housing and Planning 
Panel on 1st December 2016, where the Panel agreed to make a number of 
observations on the Plan. 

1.2 Following the earlier consultation a full draft Local Transport Plan has now been 
published for further public consultation. The consultation started on 31st October 
2017 and will run until 23rd January 2018. An informal presentation on the Plan was 
made to members by County Council officers on 14th December prior to the Panel 
meeting that evening. This report updates the Panel on the content of the draft Plan 
and the timetable intended for its adoption. The report also recommends that a 
number of comments be made concerning aspects of the Plan which are of direct 
interest to this Council.    

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Cabinet Planning and Parking Panel notes the contents of this report and 
agrees that the key points detailed in the Suggested Responses section below, 
together with any additional points agreed by the Panel, be included in this 
Council’s response to the current consultation. The Panel agrees that the Head of 
Planning be given delegated powers to agree any minor alterations to finalise the 
Council’s response following consultation with the Executive Member for Planning, 
Housing and Community. 

3 Explanation 
 
Introduction and the Local Transport Plan 

3.1 The draft Local Transport Plan (LTP4) has 115 pages and is structured into eight 
substantive sections comprising background to the Plan, challenges and drivers of 
change, themes and objectives, policies and principles, major schemes and 
implementation, funding and monitoring. The document sets out how transport can 
help deliver a positive future vision of Hertfordshire, focused around the themes of 
‘people, place and prosperity’. It is intended to deliver a blended approach of 
improvements in highways, passenger transport, walking and cycling whilst 
managing a transition away from a focus on highway capacity improvements. This 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



latter intent is due to environmental and funding constraints on the building of new 
and enhanced roads and an acknowledgement that technological advances are likely 
to enable significant change in the way in which movement takes place around the 
county. 

3.2 The LTP uses the ‘people, place and prosperity’ themes to establish a series of nine 
objectives such as to ‘Improve accessibility between employers and their labour 
markets’ and to ‘Make journeys and their impact safer and healthier’. There are also 
four guiding principles to be applied to delivering on these objectives, which are 
‘Integration of land use and transport planning’, ‘Application and adoption of 
technology’, ‘Cost effective delivery and maintenance’ and ‘Modal shift and 
encouraging active travel’. 

3.3 In addition to the LTP document itself, there will be a range of ‘daughter documents’ 
dealing with different aspects of transport within the county, including for example 
an Active Travel Strategy (covering walking and cycling), an Intalink Bus Strategy 
(dealing with bus connectivity), a Road Safety Strategy, and a new type of plan 
called a Growth and Transport Plan. The Growth and Transport Plans for different 
parts of the county will take the overall strategy and vision of the LTP and apply 
them to produce more detailed proposals for physical and policy interventions. 
Welwyn Hatfield sits within the area to be covered by the South Central Growth and 
Transport Plan on which work has commenced and is scheduled to continue 
through 2018. 

3.4 The LTP sits within a wider policy context and has links to a range of policy 
documents, including for example the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), 
Local Plans across Hertfordshire, the County Council’s Corporate Plan, the 
Hertfordshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy, and investment strategies of other 
bodies such as the Department for Transport and rail companies.  
 
Challenges and Opportunities  

3.5 The key challenges identified to transport in Hertfordshire up to 2031 and beyond 
include a predicted 21% (252,000 person) increase in the county’s population by 
2039, leading to an increased demand for travel, and how best transport can 
support economic growth and assist in tackling health issues. As far as can be seen 
these challenges will need to be addressed against a background of pressures on 
public spending. 

3.6 Growth and regeneration plans for parts of the county will also be linked to a 
growing demand for travel. These plans are set against a backdrop of the Local 
Enterprise Partnership’s (LEP’s) Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) which identifies the 
A1(M) and East Coast Mainline corridor running through Welwyn Hatfield as critical 
to growth. The A414 east-west corridor is also emerging as central to long term 
growth plans for the county. Important in this context is the work of the Hatfield 
Renewal Partnership in seeking to promote regeneration in Hatfield. The 
Partnership has recently commissioned and published a Hatfield 2030+ transport 
strategy, and the LTP acknowledges that this strategy will provide opportunities to 
improve the transport system in and around the town. 

3.7 Evidence is available of declining activity rates in the general population and this 
constitutes a challenge to be addressed through providing more opportunities and 
encouragement for walking and cycling. More engagement in active travel is seen 
as potentially reducing costs to health services. 

3.8 The LTP notes that revenue funding for areas such as bus service support has 
been particularly squeezed since the financial crisis of 2008 and this is a potential 

Page 20



challenge in seeking to address public concerns over bus services. The LTP quotes 
evidence that 19% of people believe that bus service provision is a major issue 
relating to transport in Hertfordshire. 

3.9 Under Challenges and Opportunities the LTP acknowledges that in the last 15 
years there has been negligible reduction in car use in the county and limited modal 
shift to bus, rail, walking and cycling as a means of travel. The Plan notes that there 
remains considerable potential for modal shift, with over a quarter of commuters 
travelling less than five miles to their place of work and 43% travelling less than ten 
miles. 

3.10 The LTP acknowledges however that investment in improved provision for 
sustainable transport modes will not be sufficient on its own to change existing travel 
behaviour. Investment will need to be accompanied by constraints on the amount of 
car parking at destinations. This is clearly one of the more controversial components 
of the strategy advocated by the LTP. It acknowledges that LTP4 needs to go further 
in its efforts to tackle congestion and constrain traffic growth than previous LTPs, in 
what is a more challenging funding environment.   
 
Drivers of change 

3.11 Under this section, the LTP considers the impact of changes in land use planning 
(including different spatial strategies for growth, such as increasing housing 
densities and planning for new settlements), socio-economic factors (such as an 
ageing population), technological change (new fuels, autonomous vehicles), 
political context and environmental factors (air quality and climate change 
measures) on planning for transport. Using these variables, the alignment of 
potential LTP interventions has been tested against a set of plausible future 
scenarios for Hertfordshire.  

3.12 The evidence base accompanying the LTP gives more details of the scenario 
testing exercise. The Plan states that a number of types of intervention could be 
considered as more resilient to future uncertainty. These are the introduction of new 
demand management mechanisms, the use of active travel schemes (particularly in 
urban areas) and investment in bus priority infrastructure. 

Themes, Objectives and Principles 

3.13 This section of the LTP returns to the themes, objectives and principles outlined in 
the introductory sections and explores each of the objectives in more detail, 
identifying key issues to be addressed in targeting those objectives. For example 
under the ‘Prosperity’ linked objective to ‘Improve accessibility between employers 
and their labour markets’ one of the issues to be addressed  is ‘High car mode 
share for commuting trips, even for intra-urban commutes, with inadequacies in 
passenger transport, walking and cycling provision.’ Under ‘Place’, the objective 
’Enhance the vitality and quality of town centres’ has a number of transport issues 
associated with it, including ‘A number of towns in need of renewal and 
regeneration, and transport plays a role in improving urban environment.’ Under 
‘People’, the objective to ‘Make journeys and their impact safer and healthier’ is 
linked to several issues including ‘Air quality, noise and harmful emissions from 
transport a factor in poor health and premature death.’   

3.14 This section of the Plan also provides some expansion and description for the four 
principles referred to at 3.2 above.      

 

Page 21



Policies and Activities 

3.15 This is the most substantial section of the LTP document at 50 pages and sets out 
23 policies to guide the delivery of transport measures by the County Council. A 
figure is included at the end of the section which shows how the policies align with 
the Plan’s objectives and principles discussed above. 

3.16 Policy 1 is headed ‘Transport User Hierarchy’ and is a new approach to the LTP 
which sets the scene for the other policies. It details that the County Council, in the 
design and development of transport schemes and strategies, will consider in the 
following order: 

 Opportunities to reduce travel demand and the need to travel  

 Vulnerable road user needs (such as those of pedestrians and cyclists); 

 Passenger transport user needs  

 Powered two wheeler user needs (mopeds and motorbikes)  

 Other motor vehicle user needs  

This LTP is a growth-orientated plan, making the explicit statement that it should be 
a feature of transport strategies to support the growth outlined in district and 
borough local plans. By considering the opportunities to reduce travel demand and 
the needs of more sustainable forms of transport first, they are not overlooked and 
are fully considered at an early stage in the strategy development.  

3.17 Linking this approach to the land use planning system by another proposed key 
policy (Policy 2), the LTP states that it is essential that at the very earliest stages of 
land use development options consideration, the implications and potential 
transport opportunities are fully appreciated, and serve to guide decision making. 
Conversely, the major transport schemes outlined in the LTP are seen as 
presenting ‘opportunities for additional land use development to be supported, in 
excess of current Local Plan allocations.’ 

3.18 The next key are covered by the proposed LTP policies (policies 3 and 4) is that of 
‘Travel Plans and Behaviour Change’, coupled with ‘Demand Management’. Central 
to LTP4 is the need to bring about modal shift from the car to more sustainable 
modes. This entails encouragement to changes in behaviour through the travel 
planning process coupled, significantly, with restrictions on the availability of car 
parking. Proposed Policy 4 of the LTP includes the statement that ‘The county 
council will work with the district and borough councils and other key stakeholders 
to develop locally appropriate strategies’. Such strategies are likely to include 
charging regimes for both on-street and off-street parking, also potentially for 
workplace parking. Proposals should align or be part of local parking policies so that 
decisions on parking standards and provision complement efforts to reduce demand 
for car use. Critically, the LTP suggests that, for reasons of obtaining value for 
money, those areas that progress demand management schemes should be 
prioritised for sustainable travel investment. 

3.19 Following detailed policies (5 and 6) on ‘Development Management’ and 
‘Accessibility’, the LTP addresses Active Travel through Policy 7 (Walking) and 
Policy 8 (Cycling). Policy 9 addresses Buses and contains a key element of 
focusing investment in bus priority measures on a ‘Core Bus Network’ within the 
county. From a Welwyn Hatfield perspective, this core network includes links 
between Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City and onward routes to Stevenage, 

Page 22



Hertford and St Albans. It does not however include links to the southern villages of 
the borough or southwards towards Potters Bar. The Buses policy is designed to 
take account of changing procurement arrangements for services under the Bus 
Services Act 2017, partnership working (such as through the Intalink Quality 
Partnership) and improving the attractiveness of bus travel as an option. 

3.20 Further policies of the LTP relate to Rail (Policy 10) and Airports (Policy 11), 
followed by a series of policies covering different aspects of highways; Network 
Management (Policy 12), New Roads and Junctions (Policy 13), Climate Change 
Network Resilience (Policy 14), Speed Management (Policy 15) and Freight and 
Logistics (Policy 16).  

3.21 Two policies (17 and 18) cover safety and security on the roads and for different 
types of transport, while a group of policies deals with environmental impacts, 
including Emissions Reduction (policy 19), Air Quality (Policy 20) and Environment 
(Policy 21). The Environment policy seeks to minimise impacts of traffic and 
transport infrastructure on the natural, built and historic environments and open 
spaces, also to minimise visual intrusion from signage, light pollution and noise, 
wherever practical. This Council’s Environmental Health team is considering these 
policy areas and formulating comments to form part of the response to the LTP 
consultation; an oral update will be given at the Panel meeting. 

3.22 The final two policies deal with Asset Management and the development of Growth 
and Transport Plans (GTPs) as described in 3.3 above. Policy 23 states that the 
GTPs will be informed by, and help to inform, local plans and Infrastructure Delivery 
Plans (IDPs) which are prepared by the district and borough councils. 
 
Major Schemes and Corridor Commentary  

3.23 An important section of the LTP is concerned with the identification of major 
schemes in the context of sub-regional movement corridors which pass through 
Hertfordshire. The two corridors of particular interest to Welwyn Hatfield are the 
London-Stevenage-Peterborough corridor encompassing the A1(M) and East Coast 
Main Line, and Hemel Hempstead & Watford-St Albans-Harlow corridor focused 
around the A414 and A405. 

3.24 Within the first of these corridors key proposals are working with Highways England 
on delivering the A1(M) Smart Motorway Scheme from Junction 6 to Junction 8 by 
2020 and seeking East Coast Main Line service improvements enabled by 
implementation of High Speed 2 Phase 2 which could include additional long-
distance stopping services at Stevenage and increased frequency and capacity of 
services from Welwyn Garden City and Hatfield. 

3.25 In the east-west corridor one of the main scheme priorities is to bring about a 
significant improvement in inter-urban passenger transport connectivity through 
implementation of a bus rapid transit scheme and Sustainable Travel Town 
projects. An A414 corridor strategy will also investigate potential for key junction 
improvements, particularly at and around A1(M) Junctions 3 and 4. 

3.26 Key major schemes at the concept stage are detailed in this section, developing the 
list of major schemes proposed in the Transport Vision 2050 document. These 
include Sustainable Travel Towns (now including Hatfield and Welwyn Garden 
City), Cycle Infrastructure Improvement Towns (also including Hatfield and Welwyn 
Garden City) and the A414 Bus Rapid Transit link from Hemel Hempstead to 
Welwyn Garden City, with possible future extension to Hertford and Harlow. 

Page 23



3.27 The Sustainable Travel Towns scheme entails delivery of comprehensive packages of 
measures aimed at achieving modal shift. These packages could include new cycling, 
walking and passenger transport infrastructure in combination with ‘soft’ initiatives 
such as travel planning and marketing. Travel demand management would also be 
considered. Sustainable Travel Towns are also seen as providing the potential for 
higher density and car-free development, giving a link to land use planning. Scheme 
details will be included in the Growth and Transport Plans discussed above. 

3.28 The Cycle Infrastructure Towns scheme would provide improved cycling 
infrastructure in the identified towns as well as safety and promotional support for 
cycling. Scheme details would again be included in the Growth and Transport 
Plans, and in the Active Travel Strategy. 

3.29 The Bus Rapid Transit scheme, incorporating dedicated bus-ways, bus lanes and 
bus priority signals, could potentially also serve park and ride sites on the edges of 
the towns it serves. Of the other schemes affecting different parts of the county, the 
proposal for a new A414 by-pass of Hertford, either to the north or the south of the 
town on a route to be agreed, could also have implications for traffic flows through 
Welwyn Hatfield and at the A1(M) intersections, and would form a major part of the 
A4i4 corridor strategy referred to at 3.25 above.  
 
Implementation, Funding and Monitoring 

3.30 LTP4 is programmed to be adopted by the County Council in 2018, following any 
final revisions to take account of the responses to the current consultation. A short 
final section in the draft LTP details that its daughter documents, particularly the 
Growth and Transport Plans to be finalised between 2018 and 2020, will provide 
development of the corridor interventions and major schemes. Interventions will be 
detailed in an annually-updated Implementation Plan. A monitoring report will also 
be published annually to update on progress with strategy delivery and key 
performance indicators. 

3.31 The availability of funding to meet the LTP’s aspirations will obviously be critical. 
The LTP looks at the background to both revenue and capital funding and notes the 
tight restrictions on revenue funding in particular. It is acknowledged that 
maximising government grants for infrastructure maintenance will be important, as 
will making the services more efficient and exploring the potential for new or 
increased funding services. 

3.32 Alternative funding sources are also considered, including government major 
scheme and grant funding, developers’ contributions through CIL and Section 106, 
local Growth Deal or other LEP funding, and business rates. Innovative sources 
such as sponsorship and crowd funding may also need to be explored. 

4 Suggested Responses 

4.1 The County Council is inviting responses to the LTP4 consultation either using an 
online form at https://surveys.hertfordshire.gov.uk/s/ltp4consultation/  or via email. It 
is recommended that this Council responds through an email, to incorporate the 
following comments: 

4.2 Support for the overall themes, objectives and principles of the draft LTP4 
document, as discussed above; 

4.3 Support for the Transport User Hierarchy approach contained in Policy 1 of the draft 
LTP since it addresses concerns about making travel as sustainable as possible, 
helping to make walking and cycling more attractive via suitable options and 

Page 24

https://surveys.hertfordshire.gov.uk/s/ltp4consultation/


preserving the environment while dealing with the increased demand for travel in a 
way that contributes least to congestion; 

4.4 Support for encouraging active travel, including in connection with green 
infrastructure (for example as part of this Council’s Green Corridor proposals which 
are being developed alongside the Local Plan); 

4.5 Concerning demand management measures, parking restraint and parking charges 
there needs to be close working between this Council and the County Council to 
take account of local circumstances and aspirations, for example in the context of 
Hatfield 2030+ and regeneration of Hatfield town centre. Restrictive parking 
measures need to be carefully thought through and related to the rate of progress in 
developing genuinely sustainable transport alternatives; 

4.6 Support for Growth and Transport Plans, including joint working with the County 
Council to support delivery of sustainable transport measures to serve growth as 
identified in the Welwyn Hatfield Local Plan and the Local Plans of neighbouring 
authorities, also to deliver on the Hatfield 2030+ transport strategy 
objectives/interventions; 

4.7 Concern that adequate infrastructure and support needs to be provided to bus 
services, not just within towns but also in rural areas where those (particularly older 
or less-physically able) residents without access to a car are substantially 
disadvantaged. In this context the proposed retrenchment to a ‘core bus network’ 
could have negative implications. There is a need for more joined-up planning 
between the County Council, other local authorities and bus operators, also to 
maximise opportunities afforded by rail interchange; 

4.8 Welcome the policy approach to Emissions Reduction and Air Quality 
(Environmental Health comments and suggestions to be reported orally); 

4.9 Support for inclusion of Hatfield and WGC as Sustainable Travel Towns, rectifying 
their omission from the Transport Vision 2050 document. Support for inclusion of 
Hatfield and WGC as Cycle Infrastructure Improvement Towns; 

4.10 Support for the east-west bus rapid transit scheme. This Council welcomes the 
opportunity to work in partnership with the County Council and potential operators 
when considering route/interchange points/locations of infrastructure. This Council 
also wishes to point to the opportunities potentially available in Hatfield for such a 
route, in conjunction with Hatfield 2030+ initiatives, and the importance of a suitable 
link between Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City;  

4.11 Welcome the implementation of the smart motorway scheme between Junctions 6 
and 8 of the A1(M). There will be a need for this Council and the County Council to 
work together through the Growth and Transport Plan to ensure suitable provision 
for local traffic/other modes on parallel routes; 

4.12 Members are invited to consider additional comments which they may wish to make 
following their own consideration of the draft LTP. 

5 Legal Implication(s) 

5.1 The County Council is required by law to publish a Local Transport Plan under the 
provisions of the Transport Act 2000 as amended by the Local Transport Act 2008. 
There are no legal implications for this Council in responding to this consultation. 

 

Page 25



 

6 Financial Implication(s) 

6.1 There are no financial implications arising as a direct result of responding to this 
consultation. 

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 There are no risk implications arising from responding to this consultation.  

8 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no security and terrorism implications as a direct result of responding to 
this consultation. 

9 Procurement Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no procurement implications arising as a direct result of responding to 
this consultation. 

10 Climate Change Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no direct climate change implications from responding to this 
consultation. The implementation of the Local Transport Plan itself will have an 
impact on climate change through influencing the level of emissions arising from 
vehicle journeys.  

11 Policy Implication(s) 

11.1 The policies in the Local Transport Plan and the major schemes it identifies 
affecting Welwyn Hatfield will have implications for the implementation of the 
Council’s own Local Plan policies. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The Local Transport Plan effectively links to three of this Council’s corporate 
priorities; to maintain a safe and healthy community, to protect and enhance the 
environment, and to help build a strong local economy. 

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried out, as this report 
concerns the Council’s response to a consultation document only. 

Simon Chivers 
Principal Planner (Projects) – Planning Policy and Implementation 
 
21 December 2017  

Page 26


	Agenda
	7 RESIDENT PARKING PERMIT SCHEME AND DOUBLE YELLOW LINES IN VARIOUS ROADS WELHAM GREEN
	Appendix A (002)
	Objection Duru Sachs, 52 Nash Close.pdf
	Silvey 52 Nash Close
	Local Disk
	P:\Schemes DO NOT DELETE\Welham Green\Variousw Roads 2017 TRO\objections\Silvey 52 Nash Close.txt


	Goodey, 11 Welham Close
	Local Disk
	P:\Schemes DO NOT DELETE\Welham Green\Variousw Roads 2017 TRO\objections\Goodey, 11 Welham Close.txt



	Appendix B (002)
	Pages from NOI SOR draft TRO Plans V2
	NOI  v2.pdf


	8 HERTFORDSHIRE'S LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN - PUBLIC CONSULTATION



